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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (iIF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Cone and Kimball Building, located at 747 Main Street, is a two-story
Italianate, commercial building. The building is located on a corner lot in the
Red Bluff business district and has operated as an office and general merchandise
buijging since its construction in 1885-~-86. The building is distinguished by

a third story corner tower, somewhat Second Empire in design, which contributes
to an overall eclectic display.

The facade of the Cone and Kimball Building, which faces Main Street, is plaster
faced.brick. Alterations which have occured on the first floor are plate glass
display windows and a metal awning. The tile at the base of the windows suggests
that these alterations may have occured in the 1930's. The use of such tile and
the removal of probable cast iron columns/piers in place of larger areas of plate
glass was a widespread practice in the name of "modernization". The second
story of the Cone and Kimball facade retains the original conception of the architect,
A.A. Cook. The stepped parapet with decorative corbeling and a centrally mounted
Cone and Kimball insignia, projecting cornice with central pediment and brackets
extending over a paneled frieze as well as rusticated piers that divide the
second floor into three bays are all features common to late nineteenth century
Italianate structures. Also Italianate are the window proportions, tall and
narrow, as are the cast iron window hoods. These windows are framed by attached
pilasters.

The side elevation of the Cone and Kimball Building (facing Walnut Street)
continues the facade articulation. Alterations have occured on the first floor.

A glass door and an overhead canopy are additions but the date of this alteration
is unknown. A plastic sign has been placed on the side wall and one has been
added over the first floor facade canopy. A double door with semi-circular transom
towards the rear of the side wall is a part of the original design. The second
story side fenestration is identical to the facade except the number of windows

in the three bay division varies. The facade reads 3x4x3 windows and the side
elevation reads 4x5x4 windows. Instead of the stepped facade parapet the side ele-
vation is crowned by a set~back parapet. Above this parapet on the corner rises

a third story clock tower with segmental arched windows and framing pilasters with
brackets supporting a bell flared, tiled roof with four clock faces. Above this
portion of the roof rises a second stage composed of eight columns linked to create
a circular colonnade. A tile roof capped by a weathervane completes the tower.

The street floor of the Cone and Kimball Building has been continuously occupied
since 1888 with a general merchandise store and the second floor has been used for
office space. The building has been painted gray with white trim to accent the
Victorian details around the windows and roofline. The Seth Thomas clock was
electrified in 1953.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

%he Cone and Kimball Building built in 1886 and located on Main Street has long

been a visual landmark in the city of Red Bluff, The building is a fine example

of nineteenth century commercial architecture which in style aspires towards
ostentatious display creating an eclectic syntehsis which combines a pseudo-Mansart
clock tower with Italianate fenestration. Not only significant for its architectural
contribution, the building is a tribute to two pioneers, Joseph Spenser Stone and
Gorham Gates Kimball, prominent businessmen in the Red Bluff community.

Gorham Gates Kimball (1838-1904) a seventh generation son from Massachusetts,

arrived in the Red Bluff area in 1860 via steamer. Acquiring extensive landholdings
through real estate and sheep raising activities, Kimball formed a mercantile store
partnership with L.S. Welton in 1875. A year later Kimball formed a partnership

with Joseph Spencer Cone. Kimball served as president of the board of town

trustees, president of the board of trade, and president of the Agricultural
Association in Red Bluff. Cone, a native of Marietta, Ohio, arrived in Tehama County
in 1857. He bought a ranch on Elder Creek which he sold in 1868 to purchase the
14,000 acre Berrendos land grant southeast of Red Bluff,

After a fire destroyed much of the Cone and Kimball stock, A.A. Cook, a Sacramento
architect was hired to build a store directly across from the building which

the two partners were then using for their mercantile store. A building notice
for the two-story brick, Cone and Kimball Building appears in the October 1885
issue of California Architect and Building News, p. 180. The present Cone and
Kimball Building was completed a year later.

It is significant to the development of California architecture that the
architect of the Cone and Kimball Building is known. Unlike so much ninmeteenth
century commercial architecture which remains aronymous, A.A. Cook, a resident of
Sacramento was known to have practiced throughout the State. Although Cook has
not yet been the subject of an intemsive architectural study a number of his
designs which were executed at the time of the Cone and Kimball Building have been
documented. A.A. Cook falls into a typical category of builder/architect who
practiced a mixed eclectic bag of architectural designs which ranged from small,
inexpensive domestic designs to the more elaborate commercial architecture which
is displayed in the Cone and Kimball Building. As the statewide survey of
California's historic, cultural, and architectural resources progresses, it is
becoming obvious that there are many substantial commercial buildings such as the
Cone and Kimball Building which date from the late nineteenth century...these
buildings present a genre of 1880's and 1890's commercial architecture which

will prove to be quite significant in the history of California architecture.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Block 11 of the City of Red Bluff, being the northeast corner of that block
with 100 feet fronting on Main Street and 115 feet fronting on Walnut Street
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